
llbKBl 

From: 
Sent 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 
Signed By: 

Gregory, 

1:8) 
onday, January 13, 2014 12·46 PM 

Closing the loop on your request The list is classified and not for public release. 

D,llO) 

I 



: ! 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

I!® I 
Friday, January 10, 2014 6:20 PM ~-----------~ 
I~~~ Garrv P SES OSP rn 15p PQ! icy 11 'Sl ltbXS>._

1 
__________ __. 

RE: Media Overy • Sheehan May 13 hearing and list of AQ associated forc1>s 
roXG) J 

Sir, 

Thank you. 

--···Original Message--
From: Reid, Garry P SES OSO OUSD POLICY (US) 
Sent: Friday. January 10. 2014 6:16 PM 
To:rb)(6) 

Cc:L-------------------------------' 
Subject : RE: Media Query- Sheehan May 13 hearing and list of AQ associated forces 

The reply letter to Sen Levin from ASD Sheehan was classified SECRET. 

~;~-~~~J~»' Messaqp ..... 

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:23 PM / bXS) 
To: Reid, Garry P SES OSO OUSO POLICY !US) 
ec:11ox6) I 
Subject: Media Query - Sheehan May 13 hearing and list of AQ associated forces 

Sir, 

Do you happen to recall Sheehan, in May 2013 providing a group of names of al-Qaeda's associated forces that the US 
can target under the 2001 AUMF during a hearing - may or may not have been closed? 

I imagine any list would be classified. 

One of my colleagues has a reporter asking. Whole email trail is below for your SA. 

Thank you. 

---- Original Message---



From:LjtD_x_o> ______________ _. 
Sent: Friday, January.11"'~""tf"'p""1,.4u4o;·.i..1._1..,p.,.M,_ _______ ~ 
To: Gregory Johnsen~(b t 
Subject: RE: Re: L.. -------------~ 

If it was provided in closed session to Congress, it'll have to come from there. We won't disclose. 
However, I'm roping in a colleague who might have more for her folks. 

~owe have a listing of the 'associated forces' under the AUMF that's not classified? 

Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Offoce of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for legislative Affairs, Office of the 
Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Faclllty at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Polley & Rule of law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 

----Original Message----
from: Gregory Johnsen (mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com] 
~{~1::•v lanuarv 10 2014 4·03 PM 

Subiect: e: Re: 

LJ 
Thanks for that. I actually did watch the video of that hearing and read the prepared testimony. My understanding is 
that Sheehan did provide a grouping of names at that point and that Is what I'm interested in obtaining. 

Many thanks, 

Gregory 

Hey, also - on continued background: I was thinking about our Acting General Counsel's (Robert Taylor) and 
Assistant Secretary of Defense for Special Operations and Low-Intensity Conflict Michael Sheehan's testimony at a SASC 
hearing last May. You can Google it. They provide a broad interpretation of the applicability of the AUMF to AQ 
associated forces - In places such as Mall, Libya, Syria. I'm not convinced we'll make avallabte a comprehensive list, butt 
owe you this· I'll eet you what I can. Ok'? 

2 



.· 

Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, Office of 
the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +l 703.614.3300 <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> 

----Original Message--
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com] 

Sent: Friday Janyarv 10 2014 3·29 pM 
To:fbX6) 

Subject: Re: 

Thanks for the quick reply. I have read Jeh Johnson's remarks, but what I'm interested in are the names of the 
affiliates and associated forces that the US can target under the 2001 AUMF. A point of contact at NSS would be great. 

Thanks so much for your help. 

Best, 

Greeorv 

On fcj l(bX6l 
Ian 10 2Q14 •• 3·U rM'L---------------' 

rrote: 

Hi, Gregory. 
Thanks. I'm pushing this to my folks in the General Counsel's office. 

While I clon' t believe a list to be something we'd provide - since the AUMF was written by Congress so as to 
give the President maximum flexibility - I'm happy to check. 

As our fonner General Counsel stated at Oxford in the fall of '12, war should "be regarded as a finite, 
extraordinary and unnatural state of affairs" that "violates the natural order of things." In Johnson's words: "Peace must 
be regarded as the norm toward which the human race continually strives." 

In addition to what I may (or may not) be able to generate for you, I recommend you also speak to someone 
at the NSS. 1 can give y<>u a point of contact, If you need. Regardless, I'll get back to you by SPM. Is that enough time to 
meet your deadline? 

r 
3 



. . . 
Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, 
Office of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the OetenUon Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Offlee of Military Commissions, 
Off1Ce of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law. Western Hemisphere Affairs, us Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%2B1%20703.614.3300> <tef:%2B1%20703.614.3300> 

--Original Message---
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buz:zfe.ed.com] 
Se1ffrkfav lamiaiv 10 2014 3·09 PM 
To:(~~Sl 
Sub1ect: 

We just spoke on the phone, what I'm looking for are the names of the groups of al-Qaeda affiliates as well 
as any other groups or organizations that the us can target under the 2001 AUMF. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

Gregory 0 . Johnsen 



From: 
Sent 
To: 

Fri ay, JanU<1ry lO, _.~lili~~~~4i;.i·3~8.t::PooM1....-________ ~ 

'Gregory Johnsen':! 
Subj Kt: 
Sign@<! By: 

Ok, thanks. 

··- -Original Message·- -· 

From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com] 
senr day ianuarv 10 2m44.z9 PM 
To: ~) 
Subject: Re: Re: 

Well it is late in the day on Friday. Anyway you could get me something by Monday at s? 

On Fri, Jan 10, 2014 at 4.:28 PM, b 

Yes, I am wori<ing your query. What is your deadline? 

- ·-·Original Message····· 
From: Gregory Johnsen [mail to:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com) 

Se1t· fclday •aouarv 10 2014 4 ·19 pM 
To (bj(GJ 

Cc:'------------------.1 
Subject: Re: Re: 

Ok, just trying to make sure. I didn't mean or Intend to put words in your mouth. so ~~ ·s the one I should 
direct my question toward? 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

I 



: 
.. 

1
(1))(6) 

110 10 1014 a•A·•a~M, 

rbko> 1,-. ---------------' L. ____________ _,wrote: 
On Fri 

That's not what I said or intended. 
To be dear: if it's classified, I can't release it. The bottom line Is that what we're ta~bout is not a part 

of my account. I deal with the legal implications of Defense Policy. So, I roped In my colleagueb 

l(bxai I 
Office of the Secretary of Defense (Publk. Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Offk:e of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, 
Office of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, 
Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of L;iw, Western Hemisphere Affairs, us SOuthem Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300<tel:%281%20703.614.3300> <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> 

---·-Original Message--
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com) 

Ser Wid•y 1anuarv 10 2014 4·1 s PM 
To:_(6)( l 

cc:fbk6) 
Subject: Re: Re: 

Thanks. I want to make sure that I have this correct : the names of al-Qaeda's associated forces that the US 
can target under the 2001 AUMF is classified? 

Is that correct and/or fair? Or am I misunderstanding anything. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

On Fri. Jan 10. 2014 at 4:10 PMJ1..(b_x5_l ____________ __, 
Ll(b_xs_l ________ __,rrot•: 

If it was provided in closed session to Congress, it'll have to come from there. We won't disclose. 
However, I'm roping in a colleague who might have more for her folks. 
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•' .· 

From: 
Sent 
To: 

Fridav JaguaN 10 ?014 4 •2Q pM 
f._ib_xv_i ____________ __,IGregory Johnsen 

Subj.ct: RE: Re: 
Signed lly: 

Gregory, 

I am researchlng ... more to follow. 

- - ·Orlllna! Messase=-· 

From:~f' ,,,x ,....&1 ___ __,,.....,...,....---------' 

Sent : Friday, January 10, 2014 4:19 PM 

ec:l•bX•I ---
To: Grcso: ~nbnsen 

Subject: R : e: 

That's not what I uld or intended. 
To be clear: If it's classifled, I can't r<>k!ase it. The bottom line is tha t what we're talking~ not a part of my 
account. I deal with the legal implications of Defense Polley. So, I roped in my colleague~ 

Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Offic.c of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, Office of the 
Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Milit ary Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 

..... original Mes~ge····· 
From: Gregory Johnsen (mallto:gregory.johnsen@buufcod.com) 

~:. r~day !anuaNlO 20144•15pM 

Cc: !bit l 

Subject: Re: Re: 

Thank>. 1 wont to mokc sure that I hove thi• correct the names of ol Qoedo's associ<>ted force • t hot the US con torget 
under the 2001 AUMF is classified? 

Is that correct and/or fai r? Or am I misunderstanding anything. 



From: 
S«lt: 
To: 

Cc: 

Friday. January 10, 2014 4:23 PM 
Reid, Garry p SES OSD OUSD POUCY (US)Jbll

6) 
~:: I .....__ _______ ____. 

Subject: 
Signed By: 

Media Query • Sheehan May 13 hearing and list of AQ associated forces 

116)(6) I 

Sir, 

Oo you happen to recall Sheehan, in May 2013 providing a group of names of al-Qaeda's. associated forces that the US 
can target under the 2001 AUMF during a hearing - may or may not have been closed? 

I imagine any list would be classified. 

One of my colleagues has a reporter asking. Whole email t rail is below for your SA. 

Thank you. 

----·Orisinal Messagc-­

From: !~(b,..,)(6,...)---,---..,..,,.....,...,..,...--------' 
Sent: Friday, January ,.1::;.o..i.,2.,0"'1"'4"'4"":1.,1...:.P-"M"---------~ 
To: Gregory Johnsen;j'bK5l 
Subject: RE: Re: '----------------' 

If it was provided in closed session to Congress, it'll have to come from there. We won't disclose. 
However, I'm roping in a colleague who might have more for her folks. 

EJ do we have a l isting of the 'associated forces' under the AUMF that' s not classified? 

Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, Office of the 
Special Envoy for the Oosure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

o ... k: +11oa.614.3300 

··-·Original Message····-
From: Gregory Johnsen (mailto:gregory.johnsen@buufeed.com] 

I 



From: 
Sent 
To: 
Cc 
Subject: 
Si~By: 

Gregory, 

Monday, January 13, 201412:46 PM 

Closln,g the loop on your r~que$1. The list is classified and not for public release. 

Thanks, 

~ 

[Doc 2 I 



( ) 

From: 
S.nt 
To: 

Cc: 
subject: 
Signed By: 

Sir, 

Thank you. 

-·-·Original Message····· 

Friday, January 10, 2014 6:20 PM 
Reid, Gariy P SES OSD OUSD POLICY (US); fbJM 

l(b)(6> I '----~~~~~~~ 

[(~ I 
RE: Media Query - Sheehan May 13 hearing and list of AQ associated forces 

1(6)(6> I 

From: Reid, Garry P SES OSO OUSO POLICY (US) 
Sent: Friday, January lO, 2014 6:16 PM 
To: ltbX6> 

116)(6) I 
Subject: RE: Media Que;ry- Sheehan May 13 hearing and list of AQ associated forces 

The reply letter to Sen Levin from ASD Sheehan was classified SECRET. 

····-Or)l~IMI Message ..... 
From:r Xo> 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~--' 

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:23 PM 
To: Reid, Garry P SES OSD OUSD POLICY (US)JbJ<6) 
f bX6J I 
Subject: Media Query - Sheehan May 13 hearing and list of AQ associated forces 

Sir, 

Do you happen to recall Sheehan, in May 2013 providing a group of names of al-Qaeda's associated forces that the US 
can target under the 2001 AUMF during a hearing· may or may not have been closed? 

I imagine any list would be c.lasslfled. 

One of my colleagues has a reporter asking. Whole email trail is below for your SA. 

Thank you. 

··-·Original Message .. ·-· 

l 



From:._F_l<_s) _____________ __, 

Sent: Friday, January 10. 2014 4:11 PM 
To: Gregory Johnsen;"llD""!i"°llJ.--------------. 

Subject: RE: Re: 

If it was provided in closed session to Congress, it'll have to come from there. We won't disclose. 

However, I'm roping In a colleague who might have more for her folks. 

I~~ ~do we have a listing of the 'associated forces' un<k!r the AUMF that's not classified? 

roxs1 1 
Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) The Pentagon 

Portfollo: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't . Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, Office of the 
Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Faclllty at Guantanamo Bay, Office of MilOtary Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 

-----Original Message-----
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com) 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:03 PM 
116)(1J) 
Subject: Re: Re: 

Thanks for that. I actua Hy did watch the vi~ of that hearing and read the prepared testimony. My understanding is 
that Sheehan did provide a grouping of names at that point and that is what I'm interested in obtaining. 

Many thanks, 

Gregory 

On Fri, Jan 10, 2014 at 3:56 PM, ,__ _________________________ __. 

wrote: 

Hey, also - on continued background: I was thinking about our Acting ~nerai Counsel's (Robert Taylor) and 
Assistant Secretary of Defense for Special Operations and Low-Intensity Conflict Michael Sheehan's testimony at a SASC 
hearing last May. You can Google it. They provide a broad interpretation of the applicability of the AUMF to AQ 
associated forces . in places such as Mali, Libya, Syria. I'm not convinct!d we'll make available a comprehensive list, but I 
OWP you thi<' I'll e~t ynu wh3t I C3n, OK? 
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Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the .Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, Office of 
the Speciel Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, Office of 
Oetalntt Policy & Ruic of Ulw, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.61-4.3300 <tcl:%2B1%20703.614.3300> 

--Original Me~sage-··· 
From: Gregory Johnsen (mallto:gregory.Johnsen@buzzfeed.com) 

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 3:29 PM 
To:fb)(ll) 

Subject: Re: 

Thanks for the quick reply. I have read Jeh Johnson"s remarl<s, but what I'm interested In ue the names of tile 
affiliates and associated forces that tile us can target under the 2001 AUMF. A point of contact at NSS would be great. 

Thanks so much for your help. 

!rest, 

Cregory 

Hi, Gregory. 
Thanks. I'm pushing this to my folks In the General Counsel's office. 

Wl\I~ 1 don't believe a list to be something we'd provide - since the AUMF was written by Congress so ;is to 
give the President maximum flexibility - I'm happy to check. 

As our former General Counsel stated at Oxford in the fall of'12, war should "be regarded as a finite, 
extraordinary and unnatural state of affairs" that "violates the natural order of things.• In Johnson's words: "Peace must 
be regarded es the norm toward which the human race continually strives." 

In addition to what I may {or may not) be able to generate for you, I recommend you also speak to someone 
at the NSS. I can give you a point of contact, if you need. Regardless, I'll get back to you by SPM. Is that enough time to 
meet your dc~dlinc 1 

3 



Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General counsel, Office of the Ass't. secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, 
Office of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, 
Office of Detainee Polley & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, U5 Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <te1:%261%20703.614.3300> <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> 

-~-Original Message--· 
From; Gregol)' Johnsen (mailto:gregory.johnsen@buufttd.com] 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 3:09 PM 
To:f b)(6j 

Subject: 

We Just spoke on the phone, what t'm looking for are the names of the groups of al-Qaeda affilJ3tes as well 
as any other groups or organizations that the US can target under the 2001 Al.JMF. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

Gregory o. Johnsen 

4 



( )( 

From: 
Sent 
To: 
SubJ«t 
Signed 87; 

Ok, thanks. 

-Original Message-·-· 

Friday, January 10, 2014 4:38 PM 
'Gregory Johnsen';l~!b~xa-i-------------~ 

RE: Re: 
il.'IJ)(d} 

From: Gregory Johnsen 1mail1o:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com] 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:29 PM 
To:~t .;.;... ___________________________ ---l 

Subject: Re: Re: 

Well it is late in the day on Friday. Anyway you could get me something by Monday at S:? 

Yes, I am worl<lng your query. What is your deadline? 

···-Original Message---
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com) 

rote: 

., ; •• ..,;., <• ...... ~. ' '""' ··~ """•"' ~ '"' ~""" ..... , ... "'t) 1· '" '"' ' ""'"" direct my question toward? (6) 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

1 



• 

That's not what I said or Intended. 
To be clear: if it's classified, I can't release it. The bottom line is that what we're tat~bg atout Is not a part 

of my account. I deal with the legal Implications of Defense Policy. So, I roped in my colleague D l 

Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon · 

Portfolio: Offo<:e of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, 
Office of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, 
Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

oesk: + 1 703.614.3300 <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> <tel:%i81%20703.614.3300> 

--Original Message---
From: Gregory Johnsen [mallto:gregory.johnsen@buufeed.com) 

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:15 PM 
To:llllXOl 

~~~f!'. Re: Re: 

Thanks. I want to make sure that I have this correct: the names of al-Qaeda's associated forces that the US 
can target under the 2001 AUMF ls classlfled? 

Is that correct and/or fair? Or am I misunderstanding anything. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

On Fri. Jan 10. 2014 at 4:10 PMtb)(6) 
._r _xa_> _________ __."'"'t'"· .__ _____________ ___. 

If it was provided in closed session to Congress, it'll have to come from there. We won't disclose. 
However, I'm roping Jn a colleague who might have more for her folks. 

2 



~do we have a listing of the 'associated forces' under the AUMF that's not classified? 

Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass·t. Secretary of Defense for Leglslatlve Affairs, 
Office of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, 
Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%2B1%20703.614.3300> <tel:%2Bl%20703.614.3300> 
<tel :%281%20703.614.3300> 

-·---Original Message·-·-· 
From: Gregory Johnsen lmailto:gregory.johnsen@bu~~feed.com] 

SeT ftJiday lan11arv 10 2Q J 4 4·03 PM 
To: (b)( ) 

Subject : Re: Re: 

ltbk6) 

Thank~ for that. I actually did watch the video of that hearing and read the prepared test imony. My 
understanding is that Sh eehan did provide a grouping of names at that point and that is what I'm interested in obtaining. 

Many t hanks, 

Gregory 

201 d ct 3:56 PM, ._ll
6_k_6) _____________ __. 

1
(6)(6) • 

rote: 
~--------------' 

no Fri I a n 10 

Hey, also - on continued background: I was thinking about our Acting General Counsel's (Robert 
Taylor) and Assistant Secretary of Defense for Special Operations and Low-Intensity Conflict Michael Sheehan's 
testimony at a SASC hea.ring last May. You can Google it. They provide a broad interpretation of the applicability of the 
AUM J: to l\Q 3$Coclated forc:cs - ln plac.&s: s:uch 3' Mall, Libya, Syri3. t•m not convincod we'll make available a 
comprehensive list, but I owe you this: I'll get you what I can, OK? 

3 



1(6)(6) 

Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
Thoe Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative 
Affairs, OffK:e of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Miiitary 
Commissions, Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Oe·sk: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> <tel:%2.81%20703.614.3300> 
<tel:%281%20703.614.3300> <tel:%2B1%20703.614.3300> 

·····Original Message····· 
From: Gregory Johnsen (mallto:gregory.johnsen@buzzf~d.com) 

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 3:29 PM 
To: l!bXti} 

Subject: Re: 

Thonk,_ for the quid< reply. I Mvc rco>d Jch Johnf;on'·c remarks, but what I'm interested in are the 

names of the affiliates a·nd associated forces that the US can target under the 2001 AUM F. A point of contact at NSS 
would be great. 

Thanks so much for your help. 

Be·st, 

Gregory 

==-------'O""n'"F""n"'' ,"'Ja""n"'l"'O...,, 2014 at 3:27 PM,11bl(6) 
~l!&_x_~ _________ __,~rote: '----------------' 

HI, Gregory. 
Thanks. I'm pushing this to my folks in the General Counsel's office. 

While I don't believe a list to be something we'd provide· since the AUMF was written by 
Congress so 30 to give the Preoident moximum flexibility - I'm h•ppy to check. 

As our former General Counsel stated at Oxford in the fall of '12, war should "be regarded as a 
finite, extraordinary and unnatural state of affairs" that "violates the natural order of thi ngs.• In Johnson's words: "Peace 
must be regarded as the norm toward which the human race continually strives.• 

4 



In addition to what I may (Ot may not) be able to generate for you, I recommend you also 
speak to someone at the NSS. I can give you a point of contact, if you need. Regardless, I'll get back to you by SPM. Is 
that enough time to meet your deadline? 

1<b)(6) I 
Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legls1lative 
Affairs, Office of the Spedal Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Fa<:llity at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military 
Commls.slons, Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: + 1 703.614.3300 <tel:%2B1%2070.3.614.3300> <te1:%2 81%20703.614.3300> 
<tel:%2B1%20703.614.3300> <te1:%2B1%20703.614.3300> <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> 

---Original Message-
From: Gregory Johnsen (mailto:gregory.johnsen@burneed.com] 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 3:09 PM 
To:libRBl 
Sub.le-ct: 

We just spoke on the phone, what I'm looking for are the names of the groups of al-Qaeda 
affiliates as well as any other groups or organizations that the US can target under the 2001 AUMF. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

Gregory D. Johnsen 
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.• 

from: 
Sent 
To: 
$ubj«1: 

I~::: • !ao11arv JO 2Q14 4 •20 PM 

i.-~'"='"": ....,.--------------'~regory Johnsen 

l1•x 1 I Signed lly: 

Gregory, 

I am researchlng .•. more to follow. 

--Original Me55age­
fromf0X•I 
Sent: !:-Frid.,.. '"a-y""', J:-i1-nu_il_ry--=-10=-.-=2"'0""1..,.4 """4"":1"'9""p"'M.,.....-----' 

~~~jt~:3flory Johnsen 

SuliJ:t:Rt: Re: 

That's not what I said or intended. 
To be clear: if It's classified, I can't release it. The bottom line Is that what we're talking a~ not a part of my 
account. I deal with the legal implications of Defense Polley. So, I roped in my colleague (b) 

(6) 

f0; I 
ce of the Secretary of Defense (Puhl~ Affairs) The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Offoc:e of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secrelilry of Defense for Legislative Affairs, Office of the 
Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Policy & Rule of Law. Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: + 1 703.614.3300 

---Orlglnal Message-----
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com) 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:15 PM 

~~1:: 
Subjed: Re: Re: 

Th.1nk$. I want to m•ke wrc th,>t I ~vc thi$ CON'e<t: the NMC$ of •1 -ctae<b'' 3$$0c:l;>ted force$ t~t the US t.1n t•rget 
under the 2001 AUMF Is cla.ssifled? 

Is that correct and/or fair? Or am I misunderstanding anY1hlng. 

1 



Thanks, 

Gregory 

On Fri, Jan 10, 2014ot4:10 PM,i:..:.;_;_ ________________________ _J 

wrote: 

If it was provide<! In closed session to Congress, It'll have to come from there. We won't disclose. 
However, I'm roping in a colleague who might have more for her folks. 

~do we ha1o1e a listing of the 'associated forces' under the AUMF that's not classified? 

Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't Secretary of Defense for legislative Affairs, Office of 
the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military CommiSsions, Office of 
Detainee Policy & Rule of law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> 

-Original Message····· 
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com] 

Sent: Fridav. January 10, 2014 4:03 PM 
To: fl'XUJ 

Subject: Re: Re: 

Thanks for that. tactually did watch the video of that hearing and read the prepared testimony. My 
understanding is that Sheehan did provide a grouping of names at that point and that is what I'm interested in obtaining. 

Many thanks, 

Gregory 

On Fri, Jan 10. 2014 at 3:56 PM,Lltb_xu_l ____________ __J 

l._lh_x6_) ________ _,rrote: 
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Hey, also - on continued background: I was thinking about our Actiog Gener.ii Counsel's (Robert Taylor) and 
Assistant Secretary of Defense for Special Operations and low-Intensity Conflict Mlehael Sheehan's testimony at a SASC 
hearing last May. You can Google It. They provide a broad Interpretation of the appllcablllty of the AUMF to AQ 
associated forces - In places such as Mall, Libya, Syria. I'm not convinced we'll make available a comprehensive list, but I 
owe you this: I'll get you what I can, OK? 

ll6k6) 
Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't . Secretary of Defense for legislative Affairs, 
Office of the Special Envoy for the CIOsure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Mlllt1ry Commissions, 
Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> 

---Original Mes~ge---

From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buufeed.com) 

Se1" frkl•v. 1anuarv 10. 2014 3:29 PM 
To b)(~) 

Subject; Fie: 

Thanks for 'he qulek reply. I have read Jeh Johnson's remarks, but what I'm interested In are the names of 
the affiliates and associated forces that the us can target under the 2001 AUMF. A point of contact at NSS would be 
great. 

Thanks so much for your help. 

Best, 

Gregory 

On Fri, Jan 10, 2014 at 3:27 PM.fJ<G> 
._p_xs_i _________ _,!Nrote: '---------------..J 

Hi, Gregory. 

Thanks. I'm pushing this to my folks In the General Counsel's office. 

While I don't believe a list to be something we'd provide - since the AUMF was written by Congress so 
as to give the President maximum flexibility- I'm happy to check. 
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.. 

As our former General Counsel stated at ())(ford In the fall of '12, war should ·be regarded as a finite, 
extraordinary and unnatural state of affairs" that •violates the natura\ order of things." In Johnson's words: "Peace n'luSt 
be regarded as the norm toward which the human race continually strives." 

In addition to what I may (or may not~ be able to generate for you, I recommend you also speak to 
someone at the NSS. I can give you a point of contact, if you need. Regardless, I'll get back to you by SPM. ls that 
enough time to meet your deadline? 

E:J 
1(bx0, I 
Office of the Secretary of Defense (Pubtk Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Offiee of the Gene rat Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Leglsf:ateve Affairs, 
Office of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, 
Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, WeStern Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Com1TIC1nd 

~k: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%281%2070l.614.3300> <tel:%2B1%20703.614.3300> 
<te1:%281%20703.614.3300> 

·····Original Message--
From: Gregory Johnsen [mallto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com] 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2C>l4 3:09 PM 
Toflb)(G) 

Subject: 

f6)(6) 

We just spoke on the phone, what I'm looking for are the names of the groups of al-Qaeda affiliates as 
well as any other groups or organizations that the US can target under the 2001 AUMF. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

Gregory D. Johnsen 
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From: foxd> 
Sent: Friday. Januaiy l0. 1,t20~lh!4..:!4~:2.!!.8~PM~---------~ 

'Gregoiy Johnsen':1..l'lii_x•_1 ____________ --J To: 
Subj1tt 
Signed By: 

RE: Re: 

Yes, I am working your query. What is your deadline? 

- Original Message--
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@lbuufeed.com) 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:19 PM 

ec: tbxs1 
To~OJM 

Subject: Re: Re: 

Ok, just trylnc to make sure. I didn't mean or Intend to put words in your mouth. ~6) Is the one I should direct my 
question toward? b 
TilankS, 

Gregory 

On Fri, Jan 10, 2014 at 4:18 PM,Lb_X_til ________________ _________ _J 

wrote: 

That's not what I said or intended. 
To be clear: if it's classifM!d, I can't release It. The bottom line is that what we're rlki~ about Is not a part of my 

account. I deal with the legal Implications of Defense Policy. So, I roped In my colleague Olli>I 

1(6)(111 I 
Office or the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Ponfollo: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Leglslatlve Affairs, Office of 
the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Polley & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 
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Desk: +l 703.61-4.3300 <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> 

--·Original Message···-
From: Gregory Johnsen [mallto:gregory.johnsen@lbunfeed.com) 

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:15 PM 
Tu:f16Si8) 

ec:fbx•l 
Subject: Re: Re: 

1ib~ij1 I 

Th.lnks. I want to make sure that I have thiS correct: the names of al-Qaeda's a.uotlilted forces that the US Qin 
target under the 2001 AUMf is classified? 

Is that correct ~nd/or fair? Or am I misunderstanding anything. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

Q n Fri J;ua 10. 2014 at 4.10 ~M._Jlh_R_m _____________ _.. 
Rb)(B) 
1 rote: ....._ __________ __. 

If It was Jl(Ovided in closed session to Congress, It'll have to come from there. We won't disclose. 
HOwever, I'm roping in a colleague who might have more for her folks. 

tbHdl ~do we have a listing of the 'associated forces' under the AUMF that's not classified? 

fbka> I 
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
Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, us Southern Command 

O..>I<: •l 703.614.3300 <tel~D1%2070J.614.3300> <tel:%2819'2070J.6H.HOO"' 

·····Original Message--· 
From: Gregory Johnsen (mallto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com) 
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Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 4:03 PM 
10j16k6) 

S\Jbjert: Re: Re: 

Thanks for that. I actually did watch the video of that hearing and read the prepared testimony. My 
understanding is that Sheehan did provide a grouping of names at that point and that is what I'm Interested in obtaining. 

Many thanks, 

Gregory 

Hey, also· on continued background: I was thinking about our .Acting General Counsel's (Robe" Taylor) 
and .Assistant Secretary of Defense for Special Operations and low-Intensity Conflict Michael Sheehan's testimony at a 
SASC hearing last May. You can Google It. They provide a broad interpretation of the applicability of the AUMF to AQ 
associated forces · in pl aces such as Mali, Libya, Syria. I'm not convinced we'll make available a comprehensive list, but I 
owe you this: I'll get you what I can, OK? 

i(b)(6) I 
Office of the Secretary o Defense (Public .Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, 
Office of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Oetention Facllity at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, 
Office of Detainee Polley & Rule of uw, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> <te1:%281%20703.614.3300> 
<tel:%281%20703.614.3300> 

·--0 rig Ina I Message- -· 
From: Gregory Johns«n (mailto:gregory.)ohnsen@llbuufeed.com) 

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 3:29 PM 
r0 lokd} 

Subject: Re: 
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. ' 

Thanks for the quick reply. I have read Jeh Johnson's remarks, but what l 'm interested in are the names 
of the affiliates and associated forces that the US ~n target under the 2001 AUMF. A point of contact at NSS would be 
great. 

Thanks so much for your help. 

Best .• 

Gregory 

On frj Jan 10. 201ry at 3:27 PM~{b)(e) 
~l1D_x_s'----------------------~~rote: ~-----------------------------~ 

Hi, Grqory. 
Thanks. I'm pushing this to my folks In the General COunsers office. 

Wllile I don't believe a list to be something we'd provide - since th:e AUMF was written by C<>ngre$S 
so as to gi~ the President maximt1m fle><ibiility - I'm happy to check. 

As our former General Counsel st~ted at Oxford fn the fall o·f '12; war should "be regarded as a 
finite, extraordinary and unnatural state of affairs11 that "violates the natural order of things.• In Johrisoo's words: .. Peace 
must be regarded as the norm toward which the human race continually strives." 

In addition to what I may (or may not) be able to generate for y(Ju, I tecommend yo1J also speak to 
someone at the NSS. I can give you a PQfnt of contact, if vou need. Reg~rdle~s. i'll get back to you by SPM. Is that 
enough t ime to meet your deadline? 

fb)(iH I 
Office of the Secretary or Defense (Public'.: Affairs) 
i he Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative 
Affairs, Office of the Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military 
Commissions, Office of Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <te1:%281%20703.614.3300> <te1:%281%20703.614.3300> 
<tel:%281%20703.614.3300> <te1:%2B1%20703.614.3300> 
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-·--Original Message--
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com] 
5-ent: Friday. Janu11ry 10 2014 3·09 PM 

To:~: 
Sut:i : 

We just spoke on the phone, what I'm looking for are the na~s of the groups of at-Qaeda 
affiliates as well as any other sroups or organizations that the us can target under the 2001 AUMF. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

Gregory D. Johnsen 
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From: ltb)\U) 

Sent: Friday. January 10, 2014 4:23 PM 
To: . OSO OUSO POLICY (US):l to)(llJ 

(bl!) '-· ____________ __. 

Cc: 

Subject 
Signed By: 

Sir, 

orces 

Do you happen to recall Sheehan, In May 2013 providing a group of names of al-Qaeda's associated forces that the us 
can target under the 2001 AUMF during a hearing· may or may not have been closed? 

I Imagine any llst would be classified. 

One of my colleagues has a reporter asking. Whole email trail is below tor your SA. 

Thank you. 

---Original Message---· 
From:l._f6...,xo,...> _____________ ~ 
Sent: Friday, January ;;,1-0'i'!i-4"'2"'"0""14._4'"':"'11=-P_,M.._ ______ _, 
To: Gregory Johnsen; l._1°_11_6> ____________ _, 
Subject: RE: Re: 

If It was provided in closed session to Congress, it'll have to come from there. We won't disclose. 
However. I'm roping in a colleague who might have more for her folks. 

~ do we have a listing of the 'associated forces' under the AUMF that's not classified? 

fl'X6> 
Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for legislative Affairs, Office of the 
Special Envoy for the Closure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Policy & Rule of law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

O.•k: +1 703.61~.3300 

---Original Message·- ·· 
From: Gregory Johnsen [mailto:gregory.johnsen@buzzfeed.com) 



~~l!av~anuarv 10 20144·03 PM 

SubJ : e: e: 

Thanks for that. I actually did watch the video of that hearing and read the prepared testimony. My understanding is 
that Sheehan did provid<! a grouping of names at that point 3nd that Is what I'm interested in obtaining. 

Many thanks, 

Gregory 

On Fri, Jan 10, 2014 at 3:56 PM,L.lD_x_i _________________________ _. 
wrote: 

Hey, also - on continued background: I was thinking about our Acting General Counsel's (Robert Taylor) and 
Assistant Secretary of ~fense for Special Operations and low-Intensity Conflict Michael Sheehan's testimony at a SASC 
hearing last May. You can Google it. They provide a broad interpretation of the applicability of the AUMF to AQ 
associated forces - in places such as Mali, Libya, Syria. I'm not convinced we'll make available a comprehensive list, but I 
owe you this: I'll get you what I c.ln, OK? 

itSXG> I 
Office of the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, Office of 
the Special Envoy for the aosure of the Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, Office of 
Detainee Policy & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%2Bl%20703.6l4.3300> 

- -- Original Message----
From: Gregory J<>hnsen (mailto:gregory.johnsen@buufeed.com] 

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 3:29 PM 
To:f6)(6) 

Subject: Re: 

Thanks for the quick reply. I have read Jeh Johnson's remarks, but what I'm interested in are the names of the 
affiliates and associated forces that thi! US can target under the 2001 AUMF. A point of contact at NSS would be great. 
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Thanks so mU<h for your help. 

Greaory 

On Fri, Jan 10, 2014 at 3:27 PM,llb)(di 
~l!b_xtl_i __________________ __,lwro~te-:--------------------------~ 

HI, Gregory. 
Thanks. I'm pushing this to my folks in the General Counsel's office. 

While I don't believe a list to be something we'd provide - since the AUMF was written by Congress so as to 
give the President maximum flerjbility - I'm happy to check. 

As our former General Counsel stated at Oxford in the fall of '12, war should "be regilrded as a finite, 
extraordinary and unn<1t ural state of affairs" that "violates the natural order of things.• In Johnson's words: "Peace must 
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

Office of ttle Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 
The Pentagon 

Portfolio: Office of the General Counsel, Office of the Ass't. Secretary of Defense for Legislative Affairs, 
Office of the Spetl31 Envoy for the Closure ofthe Detention Facility at Guantanamo Bay, Office of Military Commissions, 
Office of Detainee Polley & Rule of Law, Western Hemisphere Affairs, US Southern Command 

Desk: +1 703.614.3300 <tel:%281%20703.614.3300> <tel:%281%20703.614 .3300> 

·····Original Message···-
From: Gregory Johnsen (mallto:gregory.)ohnsen@buzzfeed.com) 
~nt: Friday, January 10, 2014 3:09 PM 
To:!(b)(o) 
Subject: 
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We just spoke on the phone, what l1m looking for are the names of the groups of al-Qaeda affiliates as well 
as any other groups or organizations that the US can target under the 2001 AUMF. 

Thanks, 

Gregory 

Gregory D. Johnsen 
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